
NOTICE OF PUBLIC MEETING

LUDINGTON BOARD OF EDUCATION - LUDINGTON AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT
809 E. Tinkham Avenue, Ludington, Michigan 49431 – Phone 231-845-7303

This is a meeting of the Board of Education in public for the purpose of conducting the School District’s business and is not
to be considered a public community meeting.  There is a time for public participation during the meeting as indicated on
the agenda.

Mission: The Ludington Area School District, in partnership with parents and community, will educate and empower
students to adapt and succeed in their future.

MEETING: Regular Board of Education Meeting
DATE: May 16, 2022
TIME: 6:00 p.m.
PLACE: Ludington Area Schools Administration Office, 809 E Tinkham Ave, Ludington, Michigan

REGULAR MEETING
1. CALL TO ORDER & ROLL CALL

 Steve Carlson    Bret Autrey    Mike Nagle  Stephanie Reed   Josh Snyder  Leona Ashley  Scott Foster

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
3. SPECIAL PRESENTATION

a. LHS Robotics Presentation
b. US News & World Report Ranking ~ Dan Mesyar, LHS Principal & Steve Forsberg, LHS Asst. Principal

4. AGENDA MODIFICATION
5. CITIZEN PARTICIPATION
6. CONSENT AGENDA

a. Ratification of Bill Payment - Per Summary Dated: May 16, 2022
b. Approval of Minutes – Regular, Special and Closed Meetings Dated: April 18, 2022
c. Hiring Approvals
d. Resignation Acceptances

7. BOARD COMMITTEE REPORTS
a. Finance/Negotiation Committee Report May 10, 2022
b. Personnel/Policy Committee Report May 11, 2022
c. Building & Site Committee Report May 13, 2022

8. SUPERINTENDENT’S REPORT and COMMENTS
a. Oriole Award

9. DISCUSSION ITEMS
a. Elementary Bond Project Application and Certificate for Payment #25
b. LHS Susan Shoup Student Trip to France
c. Contract Negotiations - LESPA Master Bargaining Agreement
d. Sprinkler Bid
e. MS/HS Additions Roofing Bid
f. Shoreline Cycling Club Bike Request in the School Forest
g. School of Choice Approval for 2022/2023 School Year
h. L-4029 Tax Rate Request Form
i. New Teacher Contract Hiring Recommendations
j. Quote for Road Commission to Add Turn Lane on Bryant

10. ACTION ITEMS
a. Elementary Bond Project Application and Certificate for Payment #25
b. LHS Susan Shoup Student Trip to France
c. Approval and Ratification of the LESPA Master Bargaining Agreement
d. Approval of Sprinkler Bid Award
e. Approval of MS/HS Additions Roofing Bid
f. Approval of Strategic Plan 2022-2027
g. Change of Date for June Regular Board Meeting to June 20, 2022
h. School of Choice Approval for 2022/2023 School Year
i. L-4029 Tax Rate Request Form
j. New Teacher Contract Approvals

i. Michelle Weavers
ii. Becca Brink
iii. Lily Bradley
iv. Courtney Lambert
v. Katie Nimcheski

k. Approve Quote for Road Commission to Add Turn Lane on Bryant
l. Closed Session for the Purpose of the Personnel Evaluation of the Superintendent per MCL 15.268 Section 8(1)a, as requested by the

Superintendent
m. Superintendent Evaluation for 2021-2022

11. OTHER ITEMS OF BUSINESS & ANNOUNCEMENTS
12. ADJOURNMENT

Official minutes of the Ludington Board of Education are available for public inspection during normal business hours at the Board of Education’s Central Business Office, 809
E. Tinkham Avenue, Ludington, Michigan.  The Ludington Area School District is an equal opportunity employer and provider. If you are an individual with a disability who is in
need of special accommodations to attend or participate in a public meeting please contact Superintendent Dr. Kyle B. Corlett  at 231-845-7303 at least 24 hours prior to the
meeting or as soon as possible.

Page 1 of 9



Memorandum - Office of the Superintendent

 TO: Board of Education  
FROM: Dr. Kyle B. Corlett, Superintendent
RE: Regular Meeting ~ Agenda Notes

CITIZEN PARTICIPATION
Review Board Policy 0167.3: Public Participation at Board Meetings

The Board of Education recognizes the value of public comment on educational issues and the importance
of allowing members of the public to express themselves on District matters.

To permit fair and orderly public expression, the Board shall provide a period for public participation at
every regular meeting of the Board and publish rules to govern such participation in Board meetings. The
rules shall be administered and enforced by the presiding officer of the meeting.

The presiding officer shall be guided by the following rules:

A. Public participation shall be permitted as indicated on the order of business, or at the discretion of
the presiding officer.

B. Participants must be recognized by the presiding officer and will be requested to preface their
comments by an announcement of their name, address, and group affiliation, if and when
appropriate.

C. Each statement made by a participant shall be limited to three (3) minutes duration.
D. No participant may speak more than once.
E. Participants shall direct all comments to the Board and not to staff or other participants.
F. The presiding officer may:

1. interrupt, warn, or terminate a participant's statement when the statement is too lengthy,
personally directed, abusive, obscene, or irrelevant;

2. request any individual to leave the meeting when that person does not observe reasonable
decorum;

3. request the assistance of law enforcement officers in the removal of a disorderly person
when that person's conduct interferes with the orderly progress of the meeting;

4. call for a recess or an adjournment to another time when the lack of public decorum so
interferes with the orderly conduct of the meeting as to warrant such action;

5. waive these rules with the approval of the Board when necessary for the protection of
privacy or the administration of the Board's business.

G. The portion of the meeting during which the participation of the public is invited shall be limited to
thirty (30) minutes, but the timeframe will be extended, if necessary, so that no one's right to
address the Board will be denied.

H. Tape or video recordings are permitted. The person operating the recorder should contact the
Superintendent prior to the Board meeting to review possible placement of the equipment, and
agrees to abide by the following conditions:

1. No obstructions are created between the Board and the audience.
2. No interviews are conducted in the meeting room while the Board is in session.
3. No commentary, adjustment of equipment, or positioning of operators is made that would

distract either the Board or members of the audience while the Board is in session.
I. Each Board agenda will include the following statement, "Public participation shall be permitted

only as indicated on the order of business.”

Revised: January 21, 2019

Legal: M.C.L.A. 15.263(4)(5)(6), 380.1808

Page 2 of 9



CONSENT AGENDA

Hiring Approvals
● Ali Bach, JV Cheer Coach
● Ashela Trevino, Early Childhood Program Director
● Jenna Keson, Summer School Teacher

Resignation Acceptances
● Kate Watkins, LES Aide
● Trish Forfinski, JV Soccer Coach
● Owen Wojcicki, JV Boys Swim Coach
● Susan Filter,  JV Girls Swim Coach

SUPERINTENDENT’S REPORT

Oriole Award
I will present the monthly Oriole Award.

DISCUSSION ITEMS

Elementary Bond Project Application and Certificate for Payment #25
We will need an action item at the Board meeting on Monday to approve the certificate for payment on the
elementary school bond project and to authorize the District to pay the certificate for payment in the
amount of $619,388.88 as certified by the architect and construction manager, and as outlined in the
Certificate for Payment.

LHS Susan Shoup Student Trip to Paris, France 2023
Attached to this packet is French Teacher Susan Shoup’s proposal to take a group of students to France.

Contract Negotiations- LESPA Tentative Agreement
Contract changes that received tentative agreements included eliminating language requiring four
professional development days, language to include an updated Vision Plan, combining the three secretary
positions into one category, adding a 25 year lane for rates of pay at a 2% increase, adding one more
personal day from 2 to 3 for employees up to 15 years of experience and 4 days for over 16 years,and
increasing pay by $.80 an hour for 2022-2023 as well as a $250 retention bonus for everyone, for
2023-2023 a $1 increase for parapro, bus driver, and food service employees and $.50 increase for
secretaries and maintenance workers, and for 2024-2025 a $.60 increase for everyone.

Sprinklers Bid
We received one bid for new sprinklers from a Ludington company called Olson Irrigation for $15,150 for
field 1 and $7,150 for field 3.

MS/HS Additions Roofing Bid
We requested a bid already for the roofing of the new additions that will be built at the middle and high
school because of how long the turnaround time is. The budget was $900,000 and the highest bid came in
at $1,099,550 and the lowest bid which Christman is recommending came in at $659,200 by J Stevens
Construction, which is a Muskegon based company. There were a total of four bids with zero coming from
any Ludington based companies.

Page 3 of 9



Shoreline Cycling Club Race Request
The Shoreline Cycling Club would like to request use of the School Forest Trails on Saturday, Nov. 26, 2022
for their annual Singletrack Showdown mountain bike race. This year they would like to start and end the
race at the LES facility. As in past years they will provide the school with a letter of insurance coverage
with LASD as a named insured.

School of Choice Approval for 2022/2023 School Year
It’s time to approve that we’ll receive school of choice requests for next school year. I would recommend
not having any limitations and having the deadline before school starts.

L-4029 Tax Rate Request Form
This form includes taxable value information provided by the county and millage rate information. We’re
still waiting for the information from the county to include in this form, which is a requirement to approve
every year before June.

New Teacher and Staff Hiring Recommendations
It is with pleasure that I introduce the following professional staff hiring recommendations for the
2022-2023 school year pending successful completion of all inservice requirements and background
checks per Board Policy and Michigan Law:

I. Michele Weavers
I would like to recommend Michele Weavers for the high school Science position. Michele is a
recent graduate of Grand Valley State University and holds a Bachelor’s degree in secondary
education with endorsements in Biology and Psychology. She has experience assisting in biology
and chemistry classes at a couple of high schools and substitute teaching experiences. She will be
a great addition to the Science Department.

II. Becca Brink
I would like to recommend Becca Brink. Becca attended college in Pennsylvania receiving a
Bachelor’s in Early Childhood Education with a minor in special education and a Master’s in
Reading. She is in her third year at Baldwin Community Schools where she is teaching second
grade. Becca shared how she develops a student-centered classroom that is focusing on meeting
the diverse needs of her students. With Becca being within the ESD, she has attended a number of
professional learning opportunities that align with curriculum or initiatives within our district. We
feel strongly that Becca will be a great addition to our second grade team.

III. Lily Bradley
I would like to recommend Lily Bradley. Lily is a LHS graduate and recently graduated from Grand
Valley State University with a major in elementary education and English and a minor in ESL. Lily’s
field coordinator shared that she is one of the best student teachers that she has worked with in a
long time and “possibly ever in her career.” Lily has a passion for working with students that speak
English as a second language and is eager to share her knowledge with her colleagues. She shared
several examples of how to build strong relationships with her students and to meet them where
they are while still maintaining high expectations. Lily was the team’s top candidate for this
position and we honored her desire to teach first grade.

IV. Courtney Lambert
I would like to recommend Courtney Lambert for the kindergarten position at Ludington
Elementary School. Courtney is a recent graduate from Grand Valley State University and comes
highly recommended from her field supervisor, Allison Nelson. Allison has done work within our
ESD on trauma-informed practices and has offered to continue to mentor Courtney throughout
next year. Although Courtney’s experience is limited, in speaking with her and her references,

Page 4 of 9



Courtney built strong relationships with her students and their families in the short time that she
was in her placements. Our team believes that she will be a great addition to the kindergarten
team.

V. Katie Nimcheski
I would like to recommend Katie Nimcheski for the high school English position. Katie holds a
Bachelor’s degree in secondary education with endorsements in English and Speech from the
University of Michigan-Flint. Katie holds a Master of Arts degree in General Education with a
concentration in Adult & Higher Education English from Grand Valley State University. Katie has
many years of experience in a wide variety of school settings and also administrative experience.
She will make a great addition to the English Department.

Quote for Road Commission to Add Turn Lane on Bryant
Attached is the packet is information from the Road Commission which explains the need for a turn lane
and the associated costs to install it this summer. This project would be paid for using Sinking Funds.

ACTION ITEMS

Elementary Bond Project Application and Certificate for Payment #25

Board President: We will need a motion to approve the certificate for payment on the
elementary school bond project and to authorize the District to pay the certificate for payment in the
amount of $619,388.88 as certified by the architect and construction manager, and as outlined in the
Certificate for Payment.

Motion by Member ___________________________, to approve the certificate for payment on the elementary
school bond project and to authorize the District to pay the certificate for payment in the amount of
$619,388.88 as certified by the architect and construction manager, and as outlined in the Certificate for
Payment.

Support by Member ____________________.
VOTE: (Y/N) Steve Carlson (Y/N) Bret Autrey (Y/N) Josh Snyder (Y/N) Mike Nagle (Y/N) Stephanie Reed

(Y/N) Leona Ashley (Y/N) Scott Foster. AYES: ______NAYES: _____  MOTION:   Passes  /  Fails.

LHS Susan Shoup Student Travel Request to Paris, France 2023

Board President: We will need a motion to approve the travel request to Paris, France 2023.

Motion by Member_______________________, to approve the travel request to Paris, France 2023 as
presented.

Support by Member ____________________.
VOTE: (Y/N) Steve Carlson (Y/N) Bret Autrey (Y/N) Josh Snyder (Y/N) Mike Nagle (Y/N) Stephanie Reed

(Y/N) Leona Ashley (Y/N) Scott Foster. AYES: ______NAYES: _____  MOTION:   Passes  /  Fails.

Page 5 of 9



Approval and Ratification of the 2022-2025 LESPA Master Bargaining Agreement

Board President: We will need a motion to approve and ratify the 2022-2025 LESPA Master
Bargaining Agreement as negotiated and presented.

Motion by Member_______________________, to approve and ratify the 2022-2025 LESPA Master
Bargaining Agreement as negotiated and presented.

Support by Member ____________________.
VOTE: (Y/N) Steve Carlson (Y/N) Bret Autrey (Y/N) Josh Snyder (Y/N) Mike Nagle (Y/N) Stephanie Reed

(Y/N) Leona Ashley (Y/N) Scott Foster. AYES: ______NAYES: _____  MOTION:   Passes  /  Fails.

Approval of Sprinkler Bid Award

Board President: We will need a motion to approve the sprinkler bid to the sole bidder, Olson Irrigation
for $15,150 for field 1 and $7,150 for field 3 as presented.

Motion by Member_______________________, to approve the sprinkler bid to the sole bidder, Olson
Irrigation for $15,150 for field 1 and $7,150 for field 3 as presented.

Support by Member ____________________.
VOTE: (Y/N) Steve Carlson (Y/N) Bret Autrey (Y/N) Josh Snyder (Y/N) Mike Nagle (Y/N) Stephanie Reed

(Y/N) Leona Ashley (Y/N) Scott Foster. AYES: ______NAYES: _____  MOTION:   Passes  /  Fails.

Approval of MS/HS Additions Roofing Bid Award

Board President: We will need a motion to award the roofing bid to the low bidder in the
amount of $659,200 to  J Stevens Construction, which is a Muskegon based company as presented.

Motion by Member_______________________, to  award the roofing bid to the low bidder in the amount of
$659,200 to  J Stevens Construction, which is a Muskegon based company as presented.

Support by Member ____________________.
VOTE: (Y/N) Steve Carlson (Y/N) Bret Autrey (Y/N) Josh Snyder (Y/N) Mike Nagle (Y/N) Stephanie Reed

(Y/N) Leona Ashley (Y/N) Scott Foster. AYES: ______NAYES: _____  MOTION:   Passes  /  Fails.

Approval of Strategic Plan 2022-2027

Board President: We will need a motion to approve the Strategic Plan 2022-2027 as presented.

Motion by Member_______________________, to approve the Strategic Plan 2022-2027 as presented.

Support by Member ____________________.
VOTE: (Y/N) Steve Carlson (Y/N) Bret Autrey (Y/N) Josh Snyder (Y/N) Mike Nagle (Y/N) Stephanie Reed

(Y/N) Leona Ashley (Y/N) Scott Foster. AYES: ______NAYES: _____  MOTION:   Passes  /  Fails.

Page 6 of 9



Change of Date for June Regular Board Meeting to June 20, 2022

Board President: We will need a motion to approve a change of date for the June Regular Board
Meeting to June 20, 2022 as presented.

Motion by Member_______________________, to approve a change of date for the June Regular Board
Meeting to June 20, 2022 as presented.

Support by Member ____________________.
VOTE: (Y/N) Steve Carlson (Y/N) Bret Autrey (Y/N) Josh Snyder (Y/N) Mike Nagle (Y/N) Stephanie Reed

(Y/N) Leona Ashley (Y/N) Scott Foster. AYES: ______NAYES: _____  MOTION:   Passes  /  Fails.

School of Choice Approval for 2022/2023 School Year

Board President: We will need a motion to approve School of Choice for 2022/2023 school year
as presented.

Motion by Member_______________________,  to approve School of Choice for 2022/2023 school year as
presented.

Support by Member ____________________.
VOTE: (Y/N) Steve Carlson (Y/N) Bret Autrey (Y/N) Josh Snyder (Y/N) Mike Nagle (Y/N) Stephanie Reed

(Y/N) Leona Ashley (Y/N) Scott Foster. AYES: ______NAYES: _____  MOTION:   Passes  /  Fails.

L-4029 Tax Rate Request Form

Board President: We will need a motion to approve the L-4029 Tax Rate Request Form as
presented.

Motion by Member_______________________,  to approve the L-4029 Tax Rate Request Form as presented.

Support by Member ____________________.
VOTE: (Y/N) Steve Carlson (Y/N) Bret Autrey (Y/N) Josh Snyder (Y/N) Mike Nagle (Y/N) Stephanie Reed

(Y/N) Leona Ashley (Y/N) Scott Foster. AYES: ______NAYES: _____  MOTION:   Passes  /  Fails.

New Teacher Contract Approvals

Board President: We will need a motion to approve a probationary teacher contract for the
2022/2023 school year for Michele Weavers, pending successful completion of all inservice
requirements and background checks per Board Policy and Michigan Law as presented.

Motion by Member_______________________, to approve a probationary  teacher contract for the
2022/2023 school year  for Michele Weavers, pending successful completion of all inservice
requirements and background checks per Board Policy and Michigan Law as presented.

Support by Member ____________________.
VOTE: (Y/N) Steve Carlson (Y/N) Bret Autrey (Y/N) Josh Snyder (Y/N) Mike Nagle (Y/N) Stephanie Reed

(Y/N) Leona Ashley (Y/N) Scott Foster. AYES: ______NAYES: _____  MOTION:   Passes  /  Fails.

Page 7 of 9



Board President: We will need a motion to approve a probationary teacher contract for the
2022/2023 school year for Becca Brink, pending successful completion of all inservice requirements
and background checks per Board Policy and Michigan Law as presented.

Motion by Member_______________________, to approve a probationary  teacher contract for the
2022/2023 school year  for Becca Brink, pending successful completion of all inservice requirements
and background checks per Board Policy and Michigan Law as presented.

Support by Member ____________________.
VOTE: (Y/N) Steve Carlson (Y/N) Bret Autrey (Y/N) Josh Snyder (Y/N) Mike Nagle (Y/N) Stephanie Reed

(Y/N) Leona Ashley (Y/N) Scott Foster. AYES: ______NAYES: _____  MOTION:   Passes  /  Fails.

Board President: We will need a motion to approve a probationary teacher contract for the
2022/2023 school year for Lily Bradley, pending successful completion of all inservice requirements
and background checks per Board Policy and Michigan Law as presented.

Motion by Member_______________________, to approve a probationary  teacher contract for the
2022/2023 school year  for Lily Bradley, pending successful completion of all inservice requirements
and background checks per Board Policy and Michigan Law as presented.

Support by Member ____________________.
VOTE: (Y/N) Steve Carlson (Y/N) Bret Autrey (Y/N) Josh Snyder (Y/N) Mike Nagle (Y/N) Stephanie Reed

(Y/N) Leona Ashley (Y/N) Scott Foster. AYES: ______NAYES: _____  MOTION:   Passes  /  Fails.

Board President: We will need a motion to approve a probationary teacher contract for the
2022/2023 school year for Courtney Lambert, pending successful completion of all inservice
requirements and background checks per Board Policy and Michigan Law as presented.

Motion by Member_______________________, to approve a probationary  teacher contract for the
2022/2023 school year  for Courtney Lambert, pending successful completion of all inservice
requirements and background checks per Board Policy and Michigan Law as presented.

Support by Member ____________________.
VOTE: (Y/N) Steve Carlson (Y/N) Bret Autrey (Y/N) Josh Snyder (Y/N) Mike Nagle (Y/N) Stephanie Reed

(Y/N) Leona Ashley (Y/N) Scott Foster. AYES: ______NAYES: _____  MOTION:   Passes  /  Fails.

Board President: We will need a motion to approve a probationary teacher contract for the
2022/2023 school year for Katie Nimcheski, pending successful completion of all inservice
requirements and background checks per Board Policy and Michigan Law as presented.

Motion by Member_______________________, to approve a probationary  teacher contract for the
2022/2023 school year  for Katie Nimcheski, pending successful completion of all inservice
requirements and background checks per Board Policy and Michigan Law as presented.

Support by Member ____________________.
VOTE: (Y/N) Steve Carlson (Y/N) Bret Autrey (Y/N) Josh Snyder (Y/N) Mike Nagle (Y/N) Stephanie Reed

(Y/N) Leona Ashley (Y/N) Scott Foster. AYES: ______NAYES: _____  MOTION:   Passes  /  Fails.

Page 8 of 9



Approval for Road Commission to Add Turn Lane on Bryant Road

Board President: We will need a motion to approve the Quote for the Mason County Road
Commission to add Turn Lane to Bryant Road as presented.

Motion by Member_______________________,  to approve the Quote for the Mason County Road
Commission to add Turn Lane to Bryant Road as presented.

Support by Member ____________________.
VOTE: (Y/N) Steve Carlson (Y/N) Bret Autrey (Y/N) Josh Snyder (Y/N) Mike Nagle (Y/N) Stephanie Reed

(Y/N) Leona Ashley (Y/N) Scott Foster. AYES: ______NAYES: _____  MOTION:   Passes  /  Fails.

Closed Session for the Purpose of the Personnel Evaluation of the Superintendent
Per MCL 15.268 Section 8(1)a, and as requested in writing through this communication with the Board by
the Superintendent, the Board will enter into a closed session to conduct the periodic, annual evaluation of
the Superintendent.

Board President: We will need a motion to convene in closed session at the request of the
Superintendent for the Personnel Evaluation of the Superintendent Pursuant to Open Meetings Act
Section 81(a).

Motion by Member_______________________,   to move to closed session for the purpose of the Personnel
Evaluation of the Superintendent  Pursuant to Open Meetings Act Section 81(a).

Support by Member ____________________.
MAJORITY VOTE: (Y/N) Steve Carlson (Y/N) Bret Autrey (Y/N) Josh Snyder (Y/N) Mike Nagle (Y/N) Stephanie Reed

(Y/N) Leona Ashley (Y/N) Scott Foster. AYES: ______NAYES: _____  MOTION:   Passes  /  Fails.

Superintendent Evaluation for 2021-2022
The Board will return to open session and an action item is needed to approve the Board evaluation of
Superintendent Dr. Kyle B. Corlett, as discussed, and to assign an effectiveness rating to the Superintendent
for the 2021-2022 school year.

Board President: We will need a motion to approve the Personnel Evaluation and rating of the
Superintendent.

Motion by Member_______________________,   to approve the Personnel Evaluation and rating of the
Superintendent.

Support by Member ____________________.
VOTE: (Y/N) Steve Carlson (Y/N) Bret Autrey (Y/N) Josh Snyder (Y/N) Mike Nagle (Y/N) Stephanie Reed

(Y/N) Leona Ashley (Y/N) Scott Foster. AYES: ______NAYES: _____  MOTION:   Passes  /  Fails.

Page 9 of 9





Period: 4/13/2022 through 5/11/2022

GENERAL OPERATING FUND
Payroll 4/22/22 627,998.35       
Payroll 5/6/22 684,829.58       

Total Payroll 1,312,827.93    

Bills (4/13/22 through 5/11/22) 1,118,783.92    

2,431,611.85   
TOTAL GENERAL OPERATING FUND

 
TOTAL ATHLETIC FUND 13,116.66        
Bills (4/13/22 through 5/11/22)

TOTAL LUNCH FUND 50,982.82        
Bills (4/13/22 through 5/11/22)

GRAND TOTAL ALL FUNDS 2,495,711.33   
Bills (4/13/22 through 5/11/22)

RATIFICATION OF BILL PAYMENT

May 16, 2022



Current
Year

Assets

       Savings/Checking Accounts 618,218$             
       Investments 1,682,813$          
       Taxes Receivable -$                    
       Accounts Receivable 144,667$             
       Due from Other Funds 892,353$             
       Due from Other Governmental Units -$                    
       Inventory -$                    
       Prepaid Expenses 195,346$             
       Other Assets -$                    

Total Assets 3,533,397$    

 Liablities and Fund Equity

Liabilities:
     Accounts Payable 34,917$               
     Payroll Liabilities (1,672)$               
     Accrued Expenses -$                    
     Due to Other Funds 96,312$               
     Due to Other Governmental Units -$                    
     Deferred Revenue 258,810$             
     Note Payable -$                    

Total Liabilities 388,367$             

Fund Equity:
     Inventory  (Reserved) -$                    
Other Fund Balance 3,145,030$          

Total Fund Balance 3,145,030$          
  

Total Liabilities and Fund Equity 3,533,397$    

 
 

  

LUDINGTON AREA SCHOOLS
BALANCE SHEET

For the Month Ending April 30, 2022



 
 
REVENUES: Budget Year to date Balance % spent

Local 16,160,577$   17,433,906$    (1,273,329)$  107.88%
State 5,660,564$     3,032,956$      2,627,608$   53.58%
Federal 3,641,313$     305,393$         3,335,920$   8.39%
Transfers 592,734$        282,259$         310,475$      47.62%

 
Total Revenue 26,055,188$   21,054,514$    5,000,674$   80.81%

 
EXPENDITURES:

Instruction/Basic 13,053,597$   9,592,077$      3,461,520$   73.48%
      /Added Needs 4,048,551$     2,862,015$      1,186,536$   70.69%
Support Service/Pupil 886,027$        664,346$         221,681$      74.98%
     /Instructional 887,496$        633,785$         253,711$      71.41%
     /Gen.  Admin. 469,495$        401,904$         67,591$        85.60%
     /School Admin. 1,831,732$     1,486,698$      345,034$      81.16%
     /Business 517,912$        435,698$         82,214$        84.13%
     /Oper. & Maint. 1,981,708$     1,629,830$      351,878$      82.24%
     /Transportation 925,583$        756,477$         169,106$      81.73%
     /Central Services 286,295$        204,529$         81,766$        71.44%
     /Athletics 868,796$        743,173$         125,623$      85.54%
    /Comm Services 120,573$        101,755$         18,818$        84.39%
     /Transfers 13,011$          -$                 13,011$        0.00%

Total Expenditures 25,890,776$   19,512,288$    6,365,477$   75.36%
Excess of Revenue  
over Expenses 1,542,226$      

Fund Balace 6/30/21 1,602,806$     1,602,806$      
 

  
 Ending Fund Balance 3,145,032$      

LUDINGTON AREA SCHOOLS
GENERAL FUND

STATEMENT OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES
For the Month Ending April 30, 2022

Prepared by the Business Office



 
 
REVENUES: Budget year to date Balance % spent

Tax Revenue Sinking 373,298$        376,584$         (3,286)$         100.88%
Interest Sinking Fund 2,000$            2,009$             (9)$                100.45%
Other Income 12,970$          -$                 12,970$        0.00%
Total Revenue 388,268$        378,593$         9,675$          97.51%

EXPENDITURES:
Equipment -$                -$                 -$              0.00%
Construction Sinking 382,268$        8,332$             373,936$      2.18%
Tax Appeals 6,000$            66$                  5,934$          1.10%

Total Expense 388,268$        8,398$             379,870$      2.16%

 
Fund Balace 6/30/21 804,772$        804,772$         

 
Ending Fund Balance  1,174,967$      
 

 
 

REVENUES: Budget year to date Balance % spent
Bond Issuance 930,000$        930,000$         -$              100.00%
Interest 2,000$            840$                1,160$          42.00%
Total Revenue 932,000$        930,840$         1,160$          99.88%

EXPENDITURES:
Issuance Costs 100,000          23,377$           76,623$        8.40%
Equipment 1,151,455       61,657$           1,089,798$   0.00%
Construction 10,000            -$                 10,000$        0.00%

Total Expense 1,261,455       85,034$           1,176,421$   6.74%

Fund Balace 6/30/21 445,102$        445,102$         

 
Ending Fund Balance 1,290,908$      

 

LUDINGTON AREA SCHOOLS
Building and Site Funds

Prepared by the Business Office

STATEMENT OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES
For the Month Ending April 30, 2022

LUDINGTON AREA SCHOOLS
Technology Fund

STATEMENT OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES
For the Month Ending April 30, 2022



 
 

REVENUES: Budget year to date Balance % spent
Bond Issuance 61,435,000$   -$                 61,435,000$ 0.00%
Interest Earnings 50,586$          52,107$           (1,521)$         103.01%
Energy Rebates -$                29,111$           
Total Revenue 61,485,586$   81,218$           61,404,368$ 0.13%

EXPENDITURES:
Bond Issuance Costs 1,234,860       34,250$           1,200,610$   0.00%
Contracted Services -                  -$                 -$              0.00%
Site Improvements 1,713,292       2,243,302$      (530,010)$     0.00%
Consulting Services 1,556,389       1,131,345$      425,044$      72.69%
Legal Fees 5,000              -$                 5,000$          0.00%
Building Construction 10,413,992     5,820,605$      4,593,387$   55.89%
Building Improvements -                  503,786$         (503,786)$     
Other Expense 1,644,059$      (1,644,059)$  0.00%

Total Expense 14,923,533     11,377,347      3,546,186$   76.24%

Fund Balace 6/30/2021 14,833,103$   14,833,103$    

 
Ending Fund Balance 3,536,974$      

 

Prepared by the Business Office

LUDINGTON AREA SCHOOLS
Capital Projects Fund

STATEMENT OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES
For the Month Ending April 30, 2022



Statement Period: Apr. 1 - Apr. 30, 2022

Account Number: 150363.1Account Name: Ludington Area Schools Custody Series

2019

Page 3 of 9

Market Overview
Current Period Year-to-Date

Beginning Market Value  5,943,962.14  12,741,860.94

Income

Interest 860.94

Dividends 444.95 762.39

Net Contributions/Distributions

Receipts 3,375,048.83

Disbursements (10,174,126.01)

Change in Market Value 0.00 0.00

Ending Market Value  5,944,407.09  5,944,407.09

Capital Gains
Current Period Year-to-Date

Short-term Capital Gain / (Loss) 0.00 0.00

Long-term Capital Gain / (Loss) 0.00 0.00

Asset Allocation

Account Value
Percentage Market Value

Unique Assets 28% $1,650,000

Short Term Investments 50% $2,998,038

Money Markets and Cash 22% $1,296,369

100% $5,944,407

0

2,750,000

5,500,000

8,250,000

11,000,000

13,750,000

16,500,000

19,250,000

22,000,000

24,750,000

27,500,000

A M J J A S O N D J F M A

Historical Value 

.

042846 2/5                    



Account Number: 150363.1Account Name: Ludington Area Schools Custody Series

2019 Statement Period: Apr. 1 - Apr. 30, 2022

Page 4 of 9

Portfolio(s) included in Statement
Portfolio Number: 150363.1 Portfolio Name: Ludington Area Schools Custody 2019

Transaction Summary

Income Cash Principal Cash Cost
Market Value

Including Cash
Beginning Market Value 0.00 825,630.21 5,118,331.93 5,943,962.14

Income

Interest (444.95) 444.95

Dividends 444.95 444.95

Purchases (825,630.21) 825,630.21

Ending Market Value 0.00 0.00 5,944,407.09 5,944,407.09

.

ALGPBPHMHIBMGK
APHMOGNOOBFCPK
AELCCHJGPADMJK
DDLLDDLLLLDLLL



Account Name: Ludington Area Schools Custody Series

2019

Account Number: 150363.1

Statement Period: Apr. 1 - Apr. 30, 2022

Page 5 of 9

Statement of Investment Position
Cost Basis Market Value Estimated

Units Description
Symbol
Cusip Unit Total Unit Total

Unrealized
Gain / (Loss)

Annual
Income

Yield
%

Unique Assets 
1,650,000 Flagstar Bank CD 1.00 1,650,000.00 1.00 1,650,000.00 0

Total Unique Assets 1,650,000.00 1,650,000.00 0.00 0
Total Unique Assets 1,650,000.00 1,650,000.00 0.00 0

Short Term Investments 
3,000,000 Virginia Polytechnic Inst & Stuniv CP 1.00 2,998,038.34 99.93 2,998,038.34 6,692 0.22

DTD 1/11/2022 0% 5/5/2022 92806SE56

Total Short Term Investments 2,998,038.34 2,998,038.34 0.00 6,692
Total Short Term Investments 2,998,038.34 2,998,038.34 0.00 6,692

Money Market Funds 
1,296,368.75 Michigan Class Cooperative 1.00 1,296,368.75 1.00 1,296,368.75 6,645 0.51

Liquid Asset SF8888741

Total Money Market Funds 1,296,368.75 1,296,368.75 0.00 6,645
Total Money Markets and Cash 1,296,368.75 1,296,368.75 0.00 6,645

Account Total 5,944,407.09 5,944,407.09 0.00 13,337

.

042846 3/5                    



Ludington Area Schools
Board of Education

Meeting Minutes April 18, 2022

This is a meeting of the Board of Education in public for the purpose of conducting the School District’s business
and is not to be considered a public community meeting.  There is a time for public participation during the
meeting as indicated on the agenda.

Mission: Ludington Area School District, in partnership with parents and community, will educate and empower
students to adapt and succeed in their future.

REGULAR MEETING
I. Call to Order & Roll Call ~ The meeting was held in the Administration Office Boardroom, 809 East

Tinkham Avenue, Ludington. The meeting was called to order by Steve Carlson, Board President at six
o’clock p.m.

Members Present: Steve Carlson, Bret Autrey, Mike Nagle, Stephanie Reed, Josh Snyder,
Leona Ashley and Scott Foster
Members Absent:  None

II. Pledge of Allegiance
III. Special Presentation

A. Mike Hart and Abby Schaperkotter presented Positive Behavior Intervention System Data for
OJ DeJonge Middle School.
B. Randy Fountain presented the All State awards to RyAnn Rohrer and Peyton LaCombe.

IV. Agenda Modification - None to report.
V. Citizen Participation - Several citizens addressed the board.
VI. Consent Agenda

A. Ratification of bill payment dated April 13, 2022 was approved by consent.
B. Approval of minutes from regular meeting March 21, 2022 were approved by consent.
C. Hiring approvals for Patricia Bos, Jody Rhodes, Sharilyn Rotta, Kate Watkins and Catherine
Webster submitted were approved by consent.
D. Resignations submitted for Diana Gatzke, Heather Killips, Sandra Ramirez and Amy Wojcicki
were approved by consent.
Motion by Nagle, supported by Reed, to approve the consent agenda as presented.
Ayes: Carlson, Autrey, Nagle, Reed, Snyder, Ashley, Foster. Nayes: None. Motion: Passes 7-0.

VII. Board Committee Reports
A. Stephanie Reed presented the Personnel/Policy Committee report for April 13, 2022.
B. Bret Autrey presented the Finance Committee report for April 13, 2022.
C. Mike Nagle presented the Building & Site Committee report for April 15, 2022.

VIII. Superintendent Report and Comments
A. Dr. Corlett presented a video of the Oriole Award recipient for the month of April, Heidi Urka
and gave an update on strategic planning.

IX. Discussion Items
A. The Elementary Bond Project Payment #24 was discussed. The amount is higher this month
due to ten percent retention of funds withheld until completion of the project that is being paid out
now.
B. The West Shore Educational Service District 2022-2023 General Fund Budget Resolution was
discussed.
C. Neola policy updates Volume 36 Number 2 were discussed. These policies have been
reviewed by the Policy Committee.
D. Technology purchases for 1:1 devices and cases as part of the Technology Bond Funds were
presented.
E. Pere Marquette School Resolution and property bids were discussed.
F. The Issuance of 2022 School Building and Site Bonds, Series II was discussed.

Page 1 of 2



Ludington Area Schools
Board of Education

Meeting Minutes April 18, 2022

G. The resolution to designate an ADHERA coordinator was discussed. Tyrone Collins will fill
this role for the district.

X. Action
A. Motion by Autrey, supported by Ashley, to approve the Elementary bond Project Application
and Certificate for Payment #24 in the amount of $661,805.48 as certified by the architect and
construction manager, and as outlined in the Certificate for Payment as presented.
Ayes: Carlson, Autrey, Nagle, Reed, Snyder, Ashley, Foster. Nayes: None. Motion: Passes 7-0.
B. Motion by Nagle, supported by Reed, to approve the West Shore Educational Service District
2022-2023 General Fund Budget as presented.
Ayes: Carlson, Autrey, Nagle, Reed, Snyder, Ashley, Foster. Nayes: None. Motion: Passes 7-0.
C. Motion by Reed, supported by Autrey, to approve Neola Volume 36 Number 2 policy updates
as presented.
Ayes: Carlson, Autrey, Nagle, Reed, Snyder, Ashley, Foster. Nayes: None. Motion: Passes 7-0.
D. Motion by Snyder, supported by Foster, to approve 1:1 Technology Purchases in the amount
of $846,561 from Technology Bond Funds as presented.
Ayes: Carlson, Autrey, Nagle, Reed, Snyder, Ashley, Foster. Nayes: None. Motion: Passes 7-0.
E. Motion by Foster, supported by Ashley, to suspend the Pere Marquette Property bid award to
allow for presentations from bid submitters to hear more about their proposals.
Ayes: Ashley, Foster. Nayes:Carlson, Autrey, Nagle, Reed, Snyder. Motion: Fails 2-5.

F. Motion by Nagle, supported by Autrey, to accept the Pere Marquette Property Resolution
awarding the bid to Shane Ruboyianes as written and presented.
Ayes: Carlson, Autrey, Nagle, Reed, Snyder, Ashley. Nayes: Foster. Motion: Passes 6-1.
G. Motion by Foster, supported by Autrey, to approve the Issuance of 2022 School Building and
Site Bonds, Series II Resolution as written and prepared by Thrun Law, P.c.
Ayes: Carlson, Autrey, Nagle, Reed, Snyder, Ashley, Foster. Nayes: None. Motion: Passes 7-0.
H. Motion by Reed, supported by Autrey, to approve the ADHERA Resolution further
designating Tyrone Collins as the Adhera Coordinator to fulfill District reporting requirements.
Ayes: Carlson, Autrey, Nagle, Reed, Snyder, Ashley, Foster. Nayes: None. Motion: Passes 7-0.
I. Motion by Snyder, supported by Foster, to award  the bid for the demolition of Franklin
School to Specialized Demolition in the amount of $162,000 as presented.
Ayes: Carlson, Autrey, Nagle, Reed, Snyder, Ashley, Foster. Nayes: None. Motion: Passes 7-0.

XI. Other Items of Business and Announcements ~ None heard.
XII. Adjournment ~ Motion by Autrey, supported by Foster, to adjourn the meeting at 7:02 p.m.

Ayes: Carlson, Autrey, Nagle, Reed, Snyder, Ashley, Foster. Nayes: None. Motion: Passes 7-0.

_______________________________________________________
Michael W. Nagle, Secretary, Board of Education

Approved ______________

(Official minutes of the Ludington Board of Education are available for public inspection during normal
business hours at the Board of Education’s central business office, 809 E. Tinkham Avenue, Ludington,
Michigan. Phone 231-845-7303.) The Ludington Area School District is an equal opportunity employer and
provider.

Page 2 of 2



Ludington Area Schools
Board of Education

Meeting Minutes April 18, 2022

This is a meeting of the Board of Education in public for the purpose of conducting the School District’s business
and is not to be considered a public community meeting.  There is a time for public participation during the
meeting as indicated on the agenda.

Mission: Ludington Area School District, in partnership with parents and community, will educate and empower
students to adapt and succeed in their future.

SPECIAL  MEETING
I. Call to Order & Roll Call ~ The meeting was held in the Administration Office Boardroom, 809 East

Tinkham Avenue, Ludington. The meeting was called to order by Steve Carlson, Board President at
five o’clock p.m.

Members Present: Steve Carlson, Bret Autrey, Mike Nagle, Stephanie Reed, Josh Snyder,
Leona Ashley and Scott Foster
Members Absent:  None

I. Agenda Modification ~ None to report.
II. Citizen Participation ~ One citizen addressed the board.
III. Action

A. Motion by Autrey, supported by Snyder, to go into closed session for the purpose of a student
disciplinary hearing at the request of the family pursuant to Michigan’s Open Meetings Act, Public Act
267 of 1976, as amended, Section 8(b) .
The Board convened in closed session at 5:05 p.m.
The Board returned to open session at 5:47 p.m.
B. Motion by Nagle, supported by Foster, to long term suspend student #2021-2022-4 through
the remainder of the 2021-2022 school year.
Ayes: Autrey, Nagle, Reed, Snyder, Ashley, Foster. Nayes: None. Abstain: Carlson. Motion: Passes 6-0-1.

IV. Other Items of Business and Announcements ~None to report.
V. Adjournment ~ Motion byAutrey, supported by Ashley, to adjourn the meeting at 5:51 p.m.
VI. Ayes: Carlson, Autrey, Nagle, Reed, Snyder, Ashley, Foster. Nayes: None. Motion: Passes 7-0.

_______________________________________________________
Michael W. Nagle, Secretary, Board of Education

Approved ______________

(Official minutes of the Ludington Board of Education are available for public inspection during normal
business hours at the Board of Education’s central business office, 809 E. Tinkham Avenue, Ludington,
Michigan. Phone 231-845-7303.) The Ludington Area School District is an equal opportunity employer and
provider.

Page 1 of 1



PARIS 2023- proposal May 11, 2022

Estimated Expenses    Resource links:  

Friday- 
Jan. 27 
Afternoon 
PLC


Flight to 
Paris- 
evening 
departure 
from DTW

Jan. 28

Arrive Paris- 
morning


Hotel check in


Walking tour 
of 
neighborhood


Learn metro


Jan. 29

Tour Paris


-Notre Dame

-Latin 
Quarter

-Saint 
Chapelle

-quais

-Sacré 
Coeur

Mon. Jan 30

Tour Paris


-musée 
Louvre

-Champs 
Elysées

-Arc de 
Triomphe


Tues. Jan 31

Day trip to 

Versailles


Palace & 
gardens


Wed. Feb. 1


Travel to 
Normandy 
via train


Tour 
beaches via 
pre-arranged 
bus

Thurs. Feb. 
2


Paris


- Père 
Lachaise


- Catacombs

- Shopping

Friday, Feb. 
3


Paris


Final visits

-Centre 
Pompidou

-La Défense

-Musée 
d’Orsay

Sat. Feb 4 

Fly home


Leave Paris 
a.m.

Arrive DTW 
afternoon

Sunday, 
Feb. 5


Recover

Airfare - Round-trip		 $1,100


Hotel Paris	 	 	 $350/week 

  (Student dorm accommodations w/breakfast)


Metro pass	 	 	 $25/week


food (lunch / dinner)		 $300


Normandy day trip	 	 $250


Totals	 	 	 	 $2,100

Flight (Delta):  sample flight


Hotel:  Youth hostel - centrally located


Normandy:  Day trip w/lunch


https://www.delta.com/flight-search/flexible-dates?cacheKeySuffix=e6220f54-581b-4eb5-9486-475fc9e345a6
https://www.aubergesdejeunesse.com/Auberge-jeunesse-Hostel/Aloha-Eiffel-Tower-by-Hiphophostels/BK1732836/2023-01-27/8/2?ptype=hostel&pnum=BK1732836&currency=USD&city=true
https://www.viator.com/tours/Paris/Normandy-D-Day-Battlefields-and-Beaches-Day-Trip/d479-2050NP?pid=P00058519&uid=U00172840&mcid=58086


PARIS 2023- proposal May 11, 2022

Rational


Dear Dr. Corlett,


I have been traveling to France all my life and these trips have greatly affected who I am today.

Through travel, I have gained historical perspective, cultural insight, and a deep appreciation 
for my own country.  As a result of these travels, I am also a more confident and 
compassionate person. These are the ideals that make me want to offer trips to my students.


As I complete my career, I would like to do one final student trip.  I’d like this trip to be different 
from most of my previous experiences.  Normally, I use a student travel company that arranges 
everything for us.  For this final trip, I’d like to make the arrangements myself and include 
students in the trip planning.  The more comfortable option is to let a tour company handle 
everything.  While this is convenient, travel companies have endless expenses that they must 
pass along to students.  I would also like to travel during the school year as students can now, 
for the most part, successfully managed classwork online.


My rational for this deviation is two fold.  First of all, organized travel through a company is 
cost-prohibitive to most students.  A one-week trip to France can easily cost more than 
$5,000.  Most students simply will never be able to  afford this opportunity.  Secondly, involving 
students in the trip planning can be a powerful learning opportunity.   We already study the 
history and sights of France and Paris in class.  How amazing will it be to then take students 

to the beaches in Normandy or climb Montmartre in Paris? 


There are pitfalls to a teacher-led trip, to be sure.  If I lead a trip, I will cover all of my own 
expenses.  I will also be at a greater risk for any troubles or issues that arise while abroad.   It is 
for these reasons that I could only allow the most mature and trustworthy French students on 
this trip.


The benefits and cost savings of doing all of our own planning will, I believe, outweigh any 
potential risk involved.  Helping students negotiate the complexities of international travel and 
urban transportation in a  foreign city has real world and life-changing implications.


Thank you for your consideration and your time.  Please let me know if you have any questions.


Most sincerely,

Susan Shoup








 

 

 

Ph
on

e 
61

6-
45

4-
44

54
   

 F
ax

 6
16

-4
54

-1
79

5 
   

w
w

w
.c

hr
is

tm
an

co
.c

om
 

The Christman Company   634 Front Avenue, NW, Suite 500    Grand Rapids, Michigan 49504-5355 
 

May 10, 2022 
 
Kyle Corlett 
Superintendent 
Ludington Area Schools 
809 E Tinkham Ave 
Ludington, MI 49431 
 
RE:  Ludington Area Schools – MS/HS Additions Roofing 

TCC Project 218430 
 Roofing Additions WC 14 
  
Dear Kyle: 
 
The Christman Company has received bids for Work Category 14. Bids for this category were received, publically 
opened and reviewed by the project team members.   The low responsive firm was invited for a formal post bid 
interview. 
 
We are seeking concurrence from Ludington Area Schools on The Christman Company’s recommendation for 
contract award for this Work Category prior to making an award.  This recommendation represents the firm that 
we believe provided the lowest, qualified, responsive bid for this Work Category, after reviewing all proposals, 
verifying qualifications and financial stability, conducting a post-bid interview with the bidder, and making any 
appropriate adjustments to pricing.  
 
If you are in concurrence with this recommendation, please sign below indicating such and authorizing The 
Christman Company to prepare a trade contract for Ludington to issue to the recommended firm. 
 
Please feel free to contact us if you have any questions or concerns regarding this matter.  Thank you. 
 
Sincerely, 
The Christman Company     
 
 
Ben Globke       
Project Manager  
 
Cc: Kyle Corlett, Ludington 
 Jesse Rickard, Ludington 
 Nicole Smith, GMB 
 
Concurrence with the recommendation above and as clarified in the attached spreadsheet: 
 
 
 
On behalf of Ludington Area Schools       Date 
 
 
WC 14 – MSHS Additions Roofing 
- Recommended Firm:  J Stevens Construction 
- Contract Amount:  $659,200 



BID TABULATION
Client:

WC Bidday Budget: 900,000$               Project:
Bid Package:

14
Bidday Rank (1&2):

Awarded to:

Contractor Name

Base Bid

Total Anticipated Contract:

Recommendation:

Apparent Low:

2nd Bidder:

Awarded To:

Reviewed By:

Approved By:

Total Approved Alternates:

Alternates

$0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

$699,750 Certified Building Solutions

#N/A #N/A

$659,200 $699,750 $753,000 $1,099,550 $0 $0 $0 $0

$659,200 J Stevens Construction

$659,200 $699,750 $753,000 $1,099,550

J Stevens 
Construction

Certified Building 
Solutions

Great Lakes Systems, 
Inc. Modern Roofing, Inc.

1 2 3 4

Ludington Area School District

MS HS Additions & Renovations
2

Bid Comparison
Work Category: Roofing 























 
   

 

ORIGINAL TO: County Clerk(s) Michigan Department of Treasury
614 (Rev. 02-22) COPY TO: Equalization Department(s) L-4029 

COPY TO: Each township or city clerk 2022 Tax Rate Request (This form must be completed and submitted on or before September 30, 2022) 
Carefully read the instructions on page 2. MILLAGE REQUEST REPORT TO COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

This form is issued under authority of MCL Sections 211.24e, 211.34 and 211.34d. Filing is mandatory; Penalty applies. 

County(ies) Where the Local Government Unit Levies Taxes 2022 Taxable Value of ALL Properties in the Unit as of 5-23-2022 

Local Government Unit Requesting Millage Levy For LOCAL School Districts: 2022 Taxable Value excluding Principal Residence, Qualified Agricutlural, Qualified Forest, Industrial 
Personal and Commercial Personal Properties. 

This form must be completed for each unit of government for which a property tax is levied. Penalty for non-filing is provided under MCL Sec 211.119. The following tax rates have been 
authorized for levy on the 2022 tax roll. 

(1) 
Source 

(2) 
Purpose of 

Millage 

(3) 
Date of 
Election 

(4) 
Original 
Millage 

Authorized by 
Election 

Charter, etc. 

(5) ** 
2021 Millage Rate 

Permanently 
Reduced by MCL 

211.34d 
"Headlee" 

(6) 
2022 Current 

Year "Headlee" 
Millage Reduction 

Fraction 

(7) 
2022 Millage 

Rate Permanently 
Reduced by MCL 

211.34d 
"Headlee" 

(8) 
Sec. 211.34 Truth 
in Assessing or 

Equalization 
Millage Rollback 

Fraction 

(9) 
Maximum 
Allowable 

Millage Levy * 

(10) 
Millage 

Requested to 
be Levied July 1 

(11) 
Millage 

Requested to be 
Levied Dec. 1 

(12) 
Expiration 

Date of 
Millage 

Authorized 

Prepared by Telephone Number Title of Preparer Date 

CERTIFICATION: As the representatives for the local government unit named above, we certify that these requested tax levy rates have been 
reduced, if necessary to comply with the state constitution (Article 9, Section 31), and that the requested levy rates have also been reduced, if 
necessary, to comply with MCL Sections 211.24e, 211.34 and, for LOCAL school districts which levy a Supplemental (Hold Harmless) Millage, 
380.1211(3). 

Clerk Signature Print Name Date 

Secretary 

Chairperson Signature Print Name Date 

President 

* Under Truth in Taxation, MCL Section 211.24e, the governing body may decide to levy a rate which will not exceed the maximum authorized rate 
allowed in column 9. The requirements of MCL 211.24e must be met prior to levying an operating levy which is larger than the base tax rate but not 
larger than the rate in column 9. 

Local School District Use Only. Complete if requesting 
millage to be levied. See STC Bulletin 2 of 2022 for 
instructions on completing this section. 

Total School District Operating 
Rates to be Levied (HH/Supp 
and NH Oper ONLY) Rate 

For Principal Residence, Qualified 
Ag., Qualified Forest and Industrial 
Personal 

For Commercial Personal 

For all Other 

** IMPORTANT: See instructions on page 2 regarding where to find the millage rate used in column (5). 



 

 

 
 

 
 

  

 
 

 
 
 
 

  

 

 

   

 

 

 

  
 
  
 

  

 

 

 

 

  
  

 
 

   
 
 
 

  
 

 
 

 
 

  

 

     
 

 

    
 

 
  

 
 

  

Instructions For Completing 
Form 614 (L-4029) 2022 Tax Rate Request, 

Millage Request Report To County Board Of Commissioners 
These instructions are provided under MCL Sections 211.24e 
(truth in taxation), 211.34 (truth in county equalization and 
truth in assessing), 211.34d (Headlee), and 211.36 and 
211.37 (apportionment). 
Column 1: Source.  Enter the source of each millage. 
For example, allocated millage, separate millage limitations 
voted, charter, approved extra-voted millage, public act 
number, etc. Do not include taxes levied on the Industrial 
Facilities Tax Roll. 
Column 2: Purpose of millage. Examples are: operating, 
debt service, special assessments, school enhancement 
millage, sinking fund millage, etc. A local school district 
must separately list operating millages by whether they are 
levied against ALL PROPERTIES in the school district or 
against the NON-HOME group of properties. (See State 
Tax Commission Bulletin 2 of 2022 for more explanation.) 
A local school district may use the following abbreviations 
when completing Column 2: “Operating ALL” and “Operating 
NON-HOME”. “Operating ALL” is short for “Operating millage 
to be levied on ALL PROPERTIES in the local school 
district” such as Supplemental (Hold Harmless) Millages 
and Building and Site Sinking Fund Millages. “Operating 
NON-HOME” is short for “Operating millage to be levied on 
ALL PROPERTIES EXCLUDING PRINCIPAL RESIDENCE, 
QUALIFIED AGRICULTURAL, QUALIFIED FOREST AND 
INDUSTRIAL PERSONAL PROPERTIES in the local school 
district” such as the 18 mills in a district which does not levy 
a Supplemental (Hold Harmless) Millage. 
Column 3: Date of Election. Enter the month and year 
of the election for each millage authorized by direct voter 
approval. 
Column 4: Millage Authorized.  List the allocated rate, 
charter aggregate rate, extra-voted authorized before 1979, 
each separate rate authorized by voters after 1978, debt 
service rate, etc. (This rate is the rate before any reductions.) 
Column 5: 2021 Millage Rate Permanently Reduced by 
MCL 211.34d (“Headlee”) Rollback. Starting with taxes 
levied in 1994, the “Headlee” rollback permanently reduces 
the maximum rate or rates authorized by law or charter. The 
2021 permanently reduced rate can be found in column 7 of 
the 2021 Form L-4029. For operating millage approved by 
the voters after April 30, 2021, enter the millage approved 
by the voters. For debt service or special assessments not 
subject to a millage reduction fraction, enter “NA” signifying 
“not applicable.” 
Column 6: Current Year Millage Reduction Fraction. 
List the millage reduction fraction certified by the county 
treasurer for the current year as calculated on Form 2166 
(L-4034), 2022 Millage Reduction Fraction Calculations 
Worksheet. The millage reduction fraction shall be rounded 
to four (4) decimal places. The current year millage reduction 
fraction shall not exceed 1.0000 for 2022 and future years. 
This prevents any increase or “roll up” of millage rates. Use 

1.0000 for new millage approved by the voters after April 30, 
2022. For debt service or special assessments not subject 
to a millage reduction fraction, enter 1.0000. 
Column 7: 2022 Millage Rate Permanently Reduced 
by MCL 211.34d (“Headlee”) Rollback. The number in 
column 7 is found by multiplying column 5 by column 6 on 
this 2022 Form L-4029. This rate must be rounded DOWN 
to 4 decimal places. (See STC Bulletin No. 11 of 1999, 
Supplemented by Letter of 6/7/2000.) For debt service or 
special assessments not subject to a millage reduction 
fraction, enter “NA” signifying “not applicable.” 
Column 8: Section 211.34 Millage Rollback Fraction 
(Truth in Assessing or Truth in Equalization). List the 
millage rollback fraction for 2022 for each millage which 
is an operating rate. Round this millage rollback fraction 
to 4 decimal places. Use 1.0000 for school districts, for 
special assessments and for bonded debt retirement levies. 
For counties, villages and authorities, enter the Truth in 
Equalization Rollback Fraction calulated on STC Form 
L-4034 as TOTAL TAXABLE VALUE BASED ON CEV FOR 
ALL CLASSES/TOTAL TAXABLE VALUE BASED ON SEV 
FOR ALL CLASSES. Use 1.0000 for an authority located in 
more than one county. For further information, see State Tax 
Commission Bulletin 2 of 2022. For townships and cities, 
enter the Truth in Assessing Rollback Fraction calculated  on 
STC Form L-4034 as TOTAL TAXABLE VALUE BASED ON 
ASSESSED VALUE FOR ALL CLASSES/TOTAL TAXABLE 
VALUE BASED ON SEV FOR ALL CLASSES. The Section 
211.34 Millage Rollback Fraction shall not exceed 1.0000. 
Column 9: Maximum Allowable Millage Levy.  Multiply 
column 7 (2022 Millage Rate Permanently Reduced by 
MCL 211.34d) by column 8 (Section 211.34 millage rollback 
fraction). Round the rate DOWN to 4 decimal places. (See 
STC Bulletin No. 11 of 1999, Supplemented by Letter of 
6/7/2000.) For debt service or special assessments not 
subject to a millage reduction fraction, enter millage from 
Column 4. 
Column  10/Column 11:  Millage Requested to be 
Levied.  Enter the tax rate approved by the unit of local 
government provided that the rate does not exceed the 
maximum allowable millage levy (column 9). A millage rate 
that exceeds the base tax rate (Truth in Taxation) cannot be 
requested unless the requirements of MCL 211.24e have 
been met. For further information, see State Tax Commission 
Bulletin 2 of 2022. A LOCAL School District which levies 
a Supplemental (Hold Harmless) Millage shall not levy a 
Supplemental Millage in excess of that allowed by MCL 
380.1211(3). Please see the memo to assessors dated 
October 26, 2004, regarding the change in the collection 
date of certain county taxes. 
Column 12:  Expiration Date of Millage. Enter the month 
and year on which the millage will expire. 














































































	EDMA0.0.0.0.1: 12/32
	CYMR0.0.0.0.5: N/A
	PM0.0.0.0.7: 
	2001MRPR0.0.0.0.7: 
	2001MRPR0.0.0.0.3: N/A
	2002MRPR0.0.0.0.7: 
	2002MRPR0.0.0.0.3: N/A
	MAEC0.0.0.0.6: 
	MRLD0.0.0.0.1: 0.2500
	MAML0.0.0.0.7: 
	DE0.0.0.0.5: 5/7/19
	S0.0.0.0.7: 
	MRF0.0.0.0.7: 
	PM0.0.0.0.3: B&S Series I
	EDMA0.0.0.0.0: 12/23
	CYMR0.0.0.0.4: N/A
	MRLJ0.0.0.0.7: 
	MAEC0.0.0.0.5: N/A
	DE0.0.0.0.1: 5/7/13
	MRLD0.0.0.0.0: 18.0000
	MAML0.0.0.0.6: 
	Date: 05/16/2022
	MRF0.0.0.0.5: N/A
	CYMR0.0.0.0.3: N/A
	rate1: 
	Local Government Unit: Ludington Area School District
	S0.0.0.0.2: Voted
	MRLJ0.0.0.0.6: 
	MAEC0.0.0.0.4: N/A
	2001MRPR0.0.0.0.4: N/A
	Prepared by: Jesse Rickard
	PM0.0.0.0.6: 
	MRF0.0.0.0.3: N/A
	2001MRPR0.0.0.0.0: 18.3930
	MAML0.0.0.0.5: N/A
	2002MRPR0.0.0.0.4: N/A
	2002MRPR0.0.0.0.0: 18.3930
	CYMR0.0.0.0.2: N/A
	S0.0.0.0.5: Voted
	DE0.0.0.0.4: 5/8/12
	MRLJ0.0.0.0.5: 2.0300
	Local School.Districts: 977,146,925
	MAEC0.0.0.0.3: N/A
	PM0.0.0.0.2: HS Debt
	MAML0.0.0.0.4: N/A
	MRF0.0.0.0.1: 1.0000
	EDMA0.0.0.0.7: 
	TypeName.0.1: Steven Carlson
	rate2: 
	CYMR0.0.0.0.1: 1.0000
	MRLD0.0.0.0.7: 
	DE0.0.0.0.0: 5/6/14
	MRLJ0.0.0.0.4: 0.2700
	MAEC0.0.0.0.2: N/A
	EDMA0.0.0.0.6: 
	MAML0.0.0.0.3: N/A
	S0.0.0.0.0: Voted
	2001MRPR0.0.0.0.5: N/A
	CYMR0.0.0.0.0: 1.0000
	2002MRPR0.0.0.0.5: N/A
	2001MRPR0.0.0.0.1: 0.2500
	MRLD0.0.0.0.6: 
	PM0.0.0.0.5: B&S Series II
	2002MRPR0.0.0.0.1: 0.2500
	DE0.0.0.0.7: 
	MRLJ0.0.0.0.3: 0.6100
	a: Secretary
	MAEC0.0.0.0.1: 0.2500
	EDMA0.0.0.0.5: 12/51
	b: President
	MAML0.0.0.0.2: N/A
	rate3: 
	Reset: 
	S0.0.0.0.3: Voted
	DE0.0.0.0.3: 5/7/19
	MRF0.0.0.0.6: 
	MRLD0.0.0.0.5: 2.0300
	PM0.0.0.0.1: Sinking
	MRLJ0.0.0.0.2: 0.4400
	MAEC0.0.0.0.0: 18.3930
	EDMA0.0.0.0.4: 12/25
	MAML0.0.0.0.1: 0.2500
	S0.0.0.0.6: 
	MRF0.0.0.0.4: N/A
	MRLD0.0.0.0.4: 0.2700
	2001MRPR0.0.0.0.6: 
	MRLJ0.0.0.0.1: 0.2500
	2002MRPR0.0.0.0.6: 
	2020 Taxable.Value: 1,551,223,987
	EDMA0.0.0.0.3: 12/48
	2001MRPR0.0.0.0.2: N/A
	MAML0.0.0.0.0: 18.0000
	DE0.0.0.0.6: 
	2002MRPR0.0.0.0.2: N/A
	CYMR0.0.0.0.7: 
	PM0.0.0.0.4: Tech Bond
	Phone Number: (231) 845-7303
	MRF0.0.0.0.2: N/A
	County: Mason County
	MRLD0.0.0.0.3: 0.6100
	Preparer Title: Director of Business Services
	S0.0.0.0.1: Voted
	MRLJ0.0.0.0.0: 18.0000
	DE0.0.0.0.2: 9/23/03
	EDMA0.0.0.0.2: 12/22
	CYMR0.0.0.0.6: 
	Date1: 5/16/2022
	PM0.0.0.0.0: Operating
	TypeName.0.0: Michael W. Nagle
	MRF0.0.0.0.0: 1.0000
	MAEC0.0.0.0.7: 
	MRLD0.0.0.0.2: 0.4400
	S0.0.0.0.4: Voted


